

DAVIDSON LABORATORY

Report 1137

July 1966

DRAG STUDIES OF COUPLED AMPHIBIANS

bу

R.L. Van Dyck and I. R. Ehrlich

Prepared for the Office of Naval Research Department of the Navy Contract Nonr 263(59)

(DL Project 2907/067)

Distribution of this document is unlimited. Application for copies may be made to the Defense Documentation Center, Cameron Station, 5010 Duke Street, Alexandria, Virginia 22314. Reproduction of the document in whole or in part is permitted for any purpose of the United States Government.

Approved

A-galait

1. Robert Ehrlich, Manager Transportation Research Group

vii + 17 pages 3 tables, 15 figures

14

-



.....

۴

LVTP-5 LYING EMPTY IN WATER

ABSTRACT

This report describes tests conducted to obtain the hydrodynamic drag characteristics of coupled models of the LVTP-5. Problems of swamping and broaching were also studied, and are discussed.

It was found that the total resistance of a train of five vehicles is less than twice the resistance of a single vehicle. If propulsive efficiency is unaffected by coupling, this represents a potential speed gain of almost 50 percent.

KEYWORDS

Amphibians Vehicular Trains Mobility LVTP-5 Swamping Broaching

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABSTRACT	1
NOMENCLATURE	1
INTRODUCTION	1
MODEL DESCRIPTION	3
APPARATUS AND PROCEDURE	4
DISCUSSION OF RESULTS	7
Effects of Speed on Swamping	7
Effects of Thrust Moment	8
Effects of Loading	8
Effects of Spacing	9
Effects of Connecting-Link Changes	9
Effects of Propelling-Venicle Location	9
Discussion of Total and Average EHP Required	0
Drag Breakdown for Each Vehicle	1
Directional Behavior in Waves	13
CONCLUSIONS	15
RECOMMENDATIONS	16
REFERENCES	17
FIGURES(1-15)	

R-1137

「「「「

En la sector

-1460000000

ALLACTER.

I

Ĩ

J

]

(ostrasy

(and a

.. 8

× 201

Shurter-man

ALCONTROL OF

Sector Sector

Sec. Sec.

() and all

i

ł

Į,

ļ

Name of Street, or other

1 Standard C

. .

۰.

1

NOMENCLATURE

L b	center-of-gravity locatlon, or fittings 3-ln. above modei baseiine
D	drag force developed, ib
^D N= i	drag force developed for a single isolated vehicle
ehp	effective horsepower required, $\frac{Dv}{550}$
L	over-all length of vehicie, ft
N	number of vehicles in the train
S	spacing between bow of a vehicle and stern of preceding vehicle, ft
Sta	station distance aft of basic bow forepoint, in.
v	forward velocity, fps
V	forward velocity, mph

SUBSCRIPTS

maxlmum
a train of N (or a certain number of) vehicles
a train of the same number of vehicles, with S spacing
vertical rise (+) or slnk (–) of instrumented-model CG (O at V=O) , ft
pitch angie of instrumented-model baseline, deg; bow-up is positlve
fittings 6.5-in. above model baseline
links fixed to fittings at aft end of forward model
links free to pivot in pltch at forward and aft ends

vH

• • •

INTRODUCTION

This report presents the results of a model study undertaken to find the gains that can be obtained for the water speed of amphibious vehicles, by coupling them end-to-end to form a train.

During the period i956-58, the Davidson Laboratory conducted a series of studies for the U. S. Army Ordnance Tank-Automotive Command, aimed at improving the water speed of various amphibious vehicles.¹ Due to the ilmited mission of the supporting agency, these studies were restricted to a consideration of wheeled amphibious vehicles. Under the program, a great many studies and tests were conducted; attempts were made to improve water speed by changes, additions, or deletions to the hull shape and other submerged components. The results, in general, were disillusioning. Those changes which produced a significant improvement proved to be generally unacceptable for land off-road use. A novel concept, however, which promised significant improvement without many corresponding disadvantages, was that of the SEA SERPENT, a multi-vehicle train. Preliminary tests conducted at that time indicated that the hydrodynamic drag of eight vehicles coupled together was such that the speed of the coupled configuration would be double that of a single vehicle, if the ehp/unit remained constant.

Subsequent to the SEA SERPENT tests, the Davidson Laboratory was involved in a number of studies associated with land-vehicle performance. Some of these centered about tests in which a number of cross-country vehicles were coupled together in the form of a land train. A significant number of mobility and operational advantages were demonstrated in these studies. For example, obstacles which a single vehicle could not pass, such as ditches and the "twilight zone" (water-land transition), were found to be surmounted easily by a train of vehicles coupled together. Therefore it looked practical - from both a water-borne and land-borne viewpoint - to investigate the concept of vehicle trains for amphibious operations.

1

The tests conducted in this study were designed to investigate the drag-speed characteristics of the LVTP-5 amphibian in various grouping arrangements, spacings, and loadings. A limited study of directional behavior in waves was also conducted, as a check on possible broaching characteristics.

MODEL DESCRIPTION

Five identical 1/12-scale, unpowered, fiber-glass hull models of the LVTP-5 were fitted with stationary wood and aluminum tracks (Fig. 1). These models were ballasted to simulate both combat-loaded (82,500 lb) and empty (70,500 lb) weights.⁹ Since superstructure configuration has no effect on water performance, except during swamping, a smooth, unobstructed deck was used. The models were equipped with simple pin-connection fittings so that they could be linked together in tandem, with yaw restraint. Different link lengths provided variations in vehicle-to-vehicle spacing.

Full-scale thrust moment was simulated by ballasting the models to the pltch-angle change (for full power at maximum speed) obtained by the FMC Corporation during prototype tests conducted at Camp Pendleton.³ On two models, both deck- and CG-height pin connections were fitted to make possible a determination of the effect of towing moment on drag and trim when deck-height towing is used instead of CG-height towing, with zero moment. The remainder of the multiple-vehicle tests were conducted with deck-height fittings and with 1/4-inch tubular brass links for connections between models. Ballasting was used to apply the thrust moment to every vehicle in the train. In every configuration but one, the towing-tank carriage pulled the front model at its combat-loaded CG. Models behind the front model were propelled by the pin-connection fittings which linked the vehicles. For one configuration, the trailing vehicle of a two-unit train was towed (Table 1, p. 6).

Models were ballasted to simulate both empty (70,500 lb) and fully combat-loaded (82,500 lb) weights. Static combat-loaded water llne was obtained from vehicle drawings (Fig. 1). Since all personnel and equipment are carried in the forward section of the vehicle, the empty condition results in a 49,600-ft-lb bow-up moment about the combat-loaded CG, as well as removal of 12,000 lb of weight.

R-1137

APPARATUS AND PROCEDURE

The drag tests were conducted at constant speed in the Davidson Laboratory's Tank 3. A precision drag balance of 10-1b capacity was used, In conjunction with the standard Schaevitz trim-angie and heave transducers, for measurement of resistance, trim angle, and heave of the CG of the propelling vehicle.⁴ In the photographs (Figs. 2, 3, and 4), the models are shown set up in the free-to-heave apparatus, which also permits freedom-to-trim at flxed yaw and roll angles. The calibrated signals from the transducers were transmitted by overhead cables to the standard recording equipment on shore. Speed was measured by timing the model over a 20-foot section of tank while data were being recorded. Constant loading was applied to each model to ballast it to the correct floating water line for the full 82,500-1b combat load (indicated in Figure 1 by stars and the line joining them; see, also, Figure 2). Trial runs were then made with various fixed applied pitching moments, to cover the desired range of running trim angles.

Currently, a 4-degree trim angle is achieved on the prototype at 6.7 mph for empty weight operation,³ about a $1\frac{1}{4}$ -degree increase over the trim angle for static floating conditions. The 46,600-ft-1b bow-up moment required to achieve this extra $1\frac{1}{4}$ -degree trim was then applied to both the empty (70,500 lb) and combat-loaded (82,500 lb) conditions during all subsequent model-test comparisons.

Each test configuration was run at various velocities up to the swamping speed. At this point the bow of the lead vehicle was overrun by its bow wave (Fig. 2f). In some multiple tests, 20 inches (full scale) of additional freeboard was added by a bow shield, permitting higher speeds prior to swamping (Fig. 3). In addition, for some of the five vehicle trains, additional freeboard was obtained by operating the lead vehicle under empty conditions.

Table 1 lists the various configurations tested for hydrodynamic drag.

R-1137

Tests to investigate the broaching tendency in following waves were carrled out, with a quick-release clamp on the "nutcracker" free-to-heave apparatus. This device took the train up to the maximum operating speed (6.8 mph)^b at zero yaw angle, and released it at the proper location in the tank. Once the train was released, it was allowed to drift entirely free of any restraint, throughout its run. Color motion pictures were taken, looking toward the approaching waves from the initial release point through approximately the first 30 feet of the model run. Both single- and multiple-vehicle configurations were tested in regular following seas of various lengths and heights up to breaking waves; prototype-scale heights ranged from 4 to 10.5 feet (at breaking) and lengths of 144 and 84 feet. In addition, a single vehicle was set at several other headings relative to the waves and released to float freely under the action of the waves at zero speed. These zero-speed tests were made in an attempt to find an unstable broaching-type condition for a single LVTP-5 floating at any head-Ing to the waves. Motion pictures were also taken of these static tests.

TABLE 1

DRAG-TEST CONFIGURATIONS OF LVTP-5 TRAINS

Configuration No.	Configuration
1	T
2	T
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	THXHXH
13	ГТНХНХНХ
14	

Legend:

T	
X	

Instrumented towing vehicle Vehicles supported by instrumented tow strut

L

]

Vehicles supported by uninstrumented tow strut

R-1137

DISCUSSION OF RESULTS

EFFECTS OF SPEED ON SWAMPING

Figure 2 shows the effects of speed on the bulld-up of the bow wave the principal cause of drag and, ultimately, swamping, as speed is increased. A large trough is formed at each side just aft of the bow, in the vicinity of the front end of the tracks. This trough becomes deeper and the side wave becomes longer as speed is increased, until swamping of the bow occurs; then the trough is filled in with some of the flow over the bow.

Figure 3 shows that the bow wave for the lead vehicle is formed in the same manner, regardless of the number of vehicles coupled behind it. However, there is practically no side wave on all the trailing vehicles, until speeds near 10 mph are reached. It should be noted that no bow wave is formed by any but the lead vehicle; this was found to be true irrespective of the number of vehicles coupled together in the train.

Figure 4 shows the effects of the addition of freeboard at the bow. The swamping tendency appears to be independent of the number of vehicles In the train. Additional freeboard would therefore be necessary to obtain increased speed by the use of the techniques described in this report. For achieving additional freeboard in varying amounts and with varying degrees e^{c} success, several techniques are illustrated. The figure shows that the addition of a bow-up moment — equivalent to a rearward shift in load — tends to alleviate swamping, as does the lightening of the load. The empty load condition, with its more aft CG location, delays swamping until a speed of over 9 mph is reached. However, since it is essential that these vehicles operate at their full combat load, some auxillary device be employed to add freeboard directly. Figures 2 and 14 show that swa_ing with the bare hull occurs at about 7.1 mph. Twelve inches of additional freeboard delays swamping until a speed of 7.6 mph is

R-1137

reached. A 20-inch freeboard-shield allows speeds in excess of 8.3 mph. Under empty conditions, a 20-inch shield would allow speeds of over 10 mph.

EFFECTS OF THRUST MOMENT

Caim-water drag tests of a single LVTP-5 model were conducted to investigate the effects of applied bow-up pitching moment on drag. The results of the applied-moment tests are plotted in Figures 5 and 6. it should be noted that these plots are for constant applied moment over the entire speed range. But in the prototype vehicle the track thrust line is below the CG; hence the bow-up moment will increase with increasing speed up to the calculated value of 46,600 ft-lb at maximum speed (6.8 mph). These two figures show that drag appears to be unaffected by trim changes due to moment variation. The addition of a bow shield, however, which delays the onset of swamping, materially decreases the drag at speeds where the barehuil models swamp.

Because drag was found to be insensitive to trim angle, only the 46,600-ft-ib equivalent to full-thrust moment was applied to each vehicle and maintained during all subsequent testing at all speeds. This lack of apparent effect on drag with sometimes varying trim angle occurs because the pressure drag is by far the major source of resistance, and because the friction drag, which varies with changes in wetted area, is small (on the order of 5 percent of the total drag) — in the range of operating speeds and Froude numbers of the LVTP-5 amphibian.

EFFECTS OF LOADING

Comparison of Figure 5 with Figure 6 shows that changes in drag resuiting from different huli-loadings are small, though not negligible. At 6.8 mph, the removal of 12,000 ib of load ($i4\frac{1}{2}$ percent) produces a drag reduction of about 6 percent.

As mentioned earlier, in the discussion on swamping, additional freeboard under empty conditions delays the onset of swamping of the bare hull; instead of occurring at 7.1 mph, it occurs at over 9 mph.

EFFECTS OF SPACING

Figure 7 shows that there is a change In drag with inter-vehicie spacing. For two vehicles in tandem, a decrease in spacing from 6 feet to I foot produces a 15-percent decrease in drag at 6 mph. Figure 8 is a plot of the complete range of possible spacings of two vehicles in tandem at 7 mph. The right-most point represents the combined drag of two infinitely spaced vehicles (twice the ehp of a single isolated vehicle). It is clear, therefore, that a minimum spacing is advantageous, but that little gain is obtained by reducing the spacing to less than I foot.

The results which are presented here were developed for only two vehicles in tandem. It is felt that, in general, they apply to a train of any length. Therefore all subsequent multiple-vehicle tests were conducted at zero spacing (Fig. 3).

EFFECTS OF CONNECTING-LINK CHANGES

it was belleved that the pitch moment caused by the forces exerted by the interconnecting links might change the vehicle's trim and, perhaps, its drag characteristics. Two connection heights were therefore installed on each model (Fig. 1). One was at the approximate height of the vehicle CG when the vehicle stands on level ground; the other was 3.5-feet (full scale) higher, at approximately the same height as the major portion of the top deck. Figure 9 shows that these variations produced no measurable change in heave, trim, or ehp, for two vehicles in tandem.

it was also important to learn whether or not the type of linkage connection affected vehicle performance. Figure 10 shows that fixing the link at the forward of two vehicles in tandem had a marked effect on vehicle trim. The heave and ehp, however, changed negligibly. This fact is not surprising in view of the data presented in Figures 5 and 6.

EFFECT OF PROPELLING-VEHICLE LOCATION

Here again, interconnecting forces could, perhaps, change vehicle characteristics. Figure 11 shows that the ehp remains constant regardless

of whether the first or last of a two-unit train is the towed vehicle. The tests In which the front vehicle was towed are therefore also valid for prototype analysis, where each vehicle is self-propelled.

DISCUSSION OF TOTAL AND AVERAGE EHP REQUIRED

Figure 12 shows the modest increases in ehp at a given speed, as vehicles are added to the train. It also shows how much increase in speed may be achieved by trains of two and three vehicles when a fixed ehp per vehicle is assumed. Similar increases in speed can be expected of selfpropelled prototypes if the individual propulsive efficiency of each unit is not degraded by interaction between units in a train — a reasonable assumption, but unsubstantiated because of lack of data.

The average ehp per unit required to maintain 7 mph is piotted in Figure 13. This figure indicates that, although the curve is beginning to level off, additional gains may be obtained by coupling vehicles into trains of more than five vehicles, providing operational problems do not develop.

Figure 14 has been prepared to show the effect of coupling additional vehicles on the estimated top speed possible for a train, when equal propulsive efficiency is assumed for each vehicle added. This figure is speculative in that it assumes equal increments of available thrust horsepower for each vehicle added to the train and is based on the simplified non-propulsive track-model drag-horsepower curves of Figure 12. The draghorsepower curve for five vehicles was extended up to high speed by arbitrarlly lightening the load to empty weight on the lead vehicle with 20-inch freeboard, thus delaying swamping to the 10.2-mph speed limit line shown. The available power, however, would appear to limit the top speed for five vehicles to about 9.2 mph. Insufficient freeboard was available to enable four models to reach the estimated interpolated top speed of about 8.9 mph, so no test point is shown here. Varying amounts of freeboard tested for the lead vehicle provided the swamping speed limit lines shown at 7.1, 7.6, 8.4, and 10.2 mph (with empty weight).

DRAG BREAKDOWN FOR EACH VEHICLE

in order to determine the drag experienced by each vehicle in the train, instrumented towing struts were inserted at different locations (Table 1). Table 2 shows how the results of these tests were used to calculate the drag on each unit.

The results of this analysis for speeds near 7 mph are presented in Figure 15. Note that the incremental increase of the ratio $D/D_{N=1}$ appears to remain constant with increasing N . The first vehicle appears to contribute the same drag for all train configurations where $N \ge 2$. This fact appears to be true, also, for the second vehicle where $N \ge 3$, the third vehicle where $N \ge 4$, and the iast vehicle where $N \ge 2$.

in the train configuration, the first vehicle experiences approximateiy 75 percent of the drag of a single vehicle; the last vehicle experiences approximately 50 percent of the drag of a single vehicle; and the interior vehicles experience between 20 and 25 percent of the drag of a single vehicle.

As would be expected, Figure 15 shows that most of the drag in a train of vehicles is developed by the first and the last vehicles. The middle vehicles contribute very little. Figure 15 also revea s that the total resistance of a train is essentially a linear function of the total number of units ln the train.

Number of Models In Train	Sequence Number of Model	Test Numbers (see Table 1)
1	1	1
2	1	2
2	2	5-2
3	1	3
3	2	6-3
3	3	8-6
4	1	equivalent to 4
4	2	equivalent to 7-4
4	3	equivalent to 10-7
4	4	11-9
5	1	4
5	2	7-4
5	3	10-7
5	4	12-10
5	5	13-12
1	1	1
2	1+2	5 or 14
- 3	1+2+3	8
4	1+2+3+4	11
5	1+2+3+4+5	13

TABLE 2

R-1137

1

1

METHOD OF COMBINING TEST DATA TO OBTAIN DRAG OF EACH MODEL

DIRECTIONAL BEHAVIOR IN WAVES

It is generally considered that steep, following waves will develop the worst conditions for broaching and directional stability.

Table 3 outlines the results of the broaching tests. In addition, a 15-minute 16-mm color motion picture was made to summarize these tests and depict the directional behavior of various test configurations. This film has been submitted to the Office of Naval Research as a supplement to this report.

Table 3 and the supplemental motion picture reveal that the single model launched from the carriage at approximately 7 mph (full scale) and allowed to run free in following waves of various lengths and heights up to breaking waves (10.5 ft, full scale) was inherently quite stable and resistant to broaching. Moreover, the train combinations of different numbers of vehicles tested appeared to be equally stable.

It should be noted that the added complexity of a beach was not present in these tests, nor could the semi-rigid (in all but pitch) model fittings have taken the loads that could develop if one of these heavily loaded vehicles were to strike a solid object, such as a beach.

During Run No. 14, in extremely steep 8:1 breaking waves, the fittings were broken from the aft deck of the second model, thereby changing a train of four vehicles into two trains of two vehicles. This occurred only because the hulls tried to pitch to an angle greater than the 25 degrees found permissible with the fittings on the two hulls that separated. The other hull fittings were found to permit several more degrees of relative pitch and, as a result, did not break. The observed performance of the models in waves indicated that full-scale interconnection of LVTP-5 vehicles must be capable of absorbing some degree of shock, if wave or surf operation is contemplated.

TABLE 3

Contrar +

DIRECTIONAL BEHAVIOR IN WAVES AT COMBAT LOAD (Full-Scale Values at Full-Thrust Moment and Zero Spacing)

			slowed quickly)			swamping of No. l at release)		vater to top of bow shield)	check run at this release speed)	some water on bow at release)	check run for wave size)	check run, released in trough)	some waves break to 8.5 × 84 ft)	check run for picture)	no picture)	fittings broke between 2d and 3d models)		Vo. l at empty load; No. 2 combat-loaded)	at empty load condition)	baded (turned to and stayed at following		baded (turned to and stayed at following		oaded (turned to and stayed at beam	ر ا	paded (stayed at head	30 ²)
		Comments	Stable (s	Stable	Stable	Stable (s	Stable	Stable (v	Stable (o	Stable (s	Stable (c	Stable (c	Stable (s	Stable (o	Stable (r	Stable (f	Stable	Stable (N	Stable (a	Combat-lo	sea, O	Combat-lo	sea, O	Combat-lo	sea, 9(Combat-lo	sea, l
Release	Heading From Fol.	Sea (deg)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	30		60		110		180	
	Release Sneed	(hph)	6.8	6.8	6.8	6.8	6.8	7.9	7.9	6.8	6.8	6.8	6.8	6.8	6.8	6.8	7.9	7.9	6.8	0		0		0		0	
Wave	Size Ht v lath	(ft)	74 × 144	t × 144	77 1/1/7	74 × 144	4 × 144	t × 144	t × 144	7.5×157	8 × 144	8 × 144	10.5 × 84	10.5 × 84	10.5 × 84	10.5 × 84	10.5 × 84	10.5 × 84	10.5 × 84	10.5 × 84		10.5 × 84		10.5 × 84		10.5 × 84	
	Added Freeh'd	(in.)	0	0	0	0	20	20	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	20	20	20	0	0		0		0		0	
	Units in	Train	_	—	2	m	4	4	4	'	' <u> </u>	_	_	-	2	4	2	2				—		_		-	
	ä	No.	-	7	m	4	Ś	9	7	ω	תי	0	-	12	13	14	15	16	17	18		61		20		21	

R-1137

5 J

1.2

の見たいのない

調査部長にある

Standard and

1

J

1

]

* 2

4

-

1

1

2

1

.

1

CONCLUSIONS

- Resistance tests have shown that the coupling of LVTP-5 amphibians endto-end will materially reduce the ehp/vehicle required to attain any given speed.
- 2. Additional bow freeboard or modification of hull design is required to prevent swamping and thus enable the LVTP-5 to go faster than 7 mph under combat-loaded conditions. Such changes are essential in order to realize the benefit of reduced ehp/vehicle made possible by coupling.
- 3. Minimum spacing between vehicles is optimum for all train configurations. Negligible gain is accomplished by reducing the spacing to less than one foot. In general, a S/L of less than 0.2 should be considered adequate.
- 4. The drag of each vehicle appears to be unaffected by changes in trim, except under those conditions where swamping occurs.
- 5. Changes in hull loadings in the neighborhood of fuil load produce only small, but not negligible, changes in hull drag.
- 6. The position and arrangement of inter-vehicular connecting linkages appear to have no effect on total ehp required. Some changes in trim and heave, however, were observed.
- 7. Broaching was not observed with either the single vehicle or the train configuration, running in following seas.

R-113/

15

ie.

RECOMMENDATIONS

- Full-scale prototype tests should be conducted on various numbers of LVTP-5 vehicles, connected together, to determ. If the speed increase suggested by this program can be realized.
- If the speed increases are not realized, studies should be instituted to determine what interference effects of vehicular coupling are detrimental to propulsive efficiency.
- 3. Bow shields and/or modifications in hull design should be developed so that, if the increased speeds are realized, the vehicles will be capable of achieving them under full, combat-loaded conditions, without swamping.
- 4. Operational problems assoclated with the coupling of vehicles should be investigated. This investigation should include, but not be limited to, the tactical aspects of coupled operations, the problems of coupling at sea, the problems of steering when coupling is employed, the problems of coupled vehicles in surf, and the subsequent release for freedom to yaw that is necessary for land operations.

16

REFERENCES

- KAMM, I. O and UYGUR, D., "Towing Tests of a 1/12-Scale Amphibious Sea Train Concept," DL LR-724, May 1966.
- 2. Letter from Mr. A. T. Byrne of FMC Corporation to Dr. I. Robert Ehrlich of the Davidson Laboratory, dated 11 January 1965; with enciosures.
- 3. Letter from Mr. A. T. Byrne of FMC Corporation to Dr. 1. Robert Ehrilch of the Davidson Laboratory, dated 17 February 1965; file NObs 4723-ENG-2417, with enclosures.
- 4. Davidson Laboratory Annual Report, 1964.
- 5. Characteristic Sheet Code 529V, entitled "LVTP-5," dated 20 September 1961.

je.



FIGURE I. I/ 12 - SCALE MODEL LINE DRAWING

ł

1,

R-1137

~ 一般のためを見て



(0) V= 2.4 MPH



(b) v=3.6 MPH



(c) V=4.8 MPH



(d) V=5.9 MPH



(e) V= 7. 1 MPH

(f) V= 8.3 MPH

.

FIGURE 2. TESTS OF A 1/12 SCALE, LVTP-5 MODEL UNDER VARIOUS SPEEDS, COMBAT LOADED

••••



(a) V= 6.0 MPH



(b) V=7.1 MPH



(c) V= 8.3 MPH



(d) V=9.0 MPH



(e) V=9.6 MPH

(f) V=10.2 MPH

FIGURE 3. TESTS OF A FIVE-UNIT TRAIN OF LVTP-5 MODELS, LEAD VEHICLE EMPTY WITH ADDED 20 INCH FREEBOARD, ALL OTHER VEHICLES COMBAT LOADED





(a) BARE HULL, COMBAT LOADED

(b) BARE HULL COMBAT LOADED, WITH C.G. SHIFTED 0.5 FT AFT



(C) BARE HULL, EMPTY



(d) HULL WITH 12 IN. ADDED FREEBOARD, (e) HULL WITH 20 IN. ADDED FREEBOARD, COMBAT LOADED



COMBAT LOADED

4

FIGURE 4. EFFECT OF BOW FREEBOARD ON SWAMPING V~8.3 MPH

.





EFFECTS OF APPLIED MOMENT AT COMBAT-LOADED CONDITION



FIGURE 6. EFFECTS OF APPLIED MOMENT AT EMPTY CONDITION



FIGURE 7. EFFECTS OF CONNECTING-LINK LENGTH FOR TWO VEHICLES IN TANDEM AT COMBAT LOAD

R-1137





1647

Ċ



FIGURE 9. EFFECT OF INTER-VEHICLE CONNECTION HEIGHT FOR TWO VEHICLES IN TANDEM AT COMBAT LOAD

. La 8-1137



FIGURE IO. EFFECT OF TYPE OF INTER-VEHICLE CONNECTION FOR TWO VEHICLES IN TANDEM AT COMBAT LOAD

.

ę



FIGURE II. EFFECT OF PROPELLING-VEHICLE LOCATION FOR TWO VEHICLES IN TANDEM AT COMBAT LOAD





1





. .



FIGURE 14. PROJECTED TOP SPEED AND SWAMPING LIMITS (FREEBOARD ADDED TO LEAD VEHICLE)

.

.*

4.



A REAL PROPERTY.

ALC: N



Security Classification	-								
DOC	UMENT CONTROL DATA	R&D	the overell report is cleasified)						
1 ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Corporate author)		Ze REPO	RT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION						
Davidson Laboratory, Steve	ns Institute of		Unclassified						
Technology		Z D GROU) P						
REPORT TITLE		4							
DRAG STUDIES OF COUPLED AM	PHIBIANS								
A DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and Inclue	ive detee)								
AUTHOR(S) (Lest name, first name, initial)									
Van Dyck. R. L. and Ehrlic	h. I. R.								
	···•								
REPORT DATE	7. TOTAL NO.	OF PAGES	75. NO. OF REFS						
July 1966	41		5						
Nonr 263(59)	90 ORIGINATOF	SREPORT NU	MBER(5)						
b. PROJECT NO.		R-1137							
			·						
	this report)	JRT NO(3) (AN)	oner numbers unet mey ba seatgned						
d.	<u> </u>								
Oublifted as a star		_							
All distribution of this re	ptain copies of this eport is unlimited.	report fr	om DDC.						
1. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	12. SPONSORING	MILITARY ACT							
	Offi	ce of Nava	l Research						
	Depa	Department of the Navy							
3. ABSTRACT									
This report describes	tests conducted to	obtain the	hydrodynamic drag						
characteristics of counled	models of the LVTP-	5 Proble	uns of summing and						
broaching were also studio	d and are discusses		ans or swampring and						
broaching were also studie	u, and are discussed	•							
It was found that the	total resistance of	a train d	of five vehicles Is						
less than twice the resist	ance of a single veh	icle. If	propulsive effi-						
ciency is unaffected by co	upling, this represe	ents a pote	ential speed galn of						
almost 50 percent.									
	3								
D FORM 1473									

Security Classification

UNCLASSIFIED

÷

Security Classification

t4 KEY WORDS		LIN	к а	LIN	кө	LINK C	
		ROLE	WT	ROLE	ΨT	ROLE	ΨT
Amphibians Vehicular Trains Mobility LVTP-5 Swamping Broaching							
INSTRU	CTIONS						
 ORIGINATING AUTIVITY: Enter the name and address of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, Department of De- fenae activity or other organization (corporate author) issuing the report. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION: Fnter the over- all security classification of the report. Indicate whicher "Restricted Data" is included. Marking is to be in accord- ance with appropriate security regulations. Gi, NDP: Automstic downgrading is specified in DoD Di- rective 5200.10 and Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the group number. Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as author- lzed. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report title in all capital lettera. Titles in all cases should be unclassified. If a meaningful title cannot be aelected without classifica- tion, show title classification in all capitals in parenthesis immediately following the title. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: if appropriate, enter the type of report, e.g., interim, progress, summary, annual, or final. Give the inclusive dates when a specific reporting period is covered. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name(s) of suthor(s) as shown on or in the report. Enter its name, first name, middle initial. If military, show rank and branch of service. The name of the principal suthor us an absolute minimum requirement. REPORT DATE: Enter the date of the report as day, month, year, or month, year. If more thers one dule sppears on the report. GRANT NUMBER: If appropriste, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which the report was written. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER: If appropriste, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which the report number, system numbers, task number, etc. OK-GINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): Enter the offi- cial report number, system numbers, task number, etc. OK-GINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): If the report has been assigned any other report numbers (<i>e</i>	imposed by such as: (1) " (2) " (3) " (3) " (4) " (4) " (5) " (5) " (6) " (7) " (6) " (7)	y security Qualified port from Foreign a port by D U. S. Gov is report sers shall U. S. mili port direc hall reque All distri- fied DDC report has Department fact and e CLEMENT SORING I mental pro- e research fact and e CLEMENT Sories for cas aified. En ion of the in the par is no lim suggested WORDS: trases that ies for cas o that no assignment	classific requeste DDC." nnouncen DC is no ernment i directly i request tary agen tary agen to been fur not of Com net throug button of users sho is been fur nt of Com nter the p ARY NO [*] MILITAR oject offi h and dev Enter an a ument ind elsewhere agraph, re- litation on length is Key word t charact taloging i is ecurity ment mod geographi itowed by nt of link	ation, us rs may ob- ment and of t suthoriz sgencies from DDC through cles may DDC. Ot h this repo dil reques DDC. Ot h this repo dil reques request corice, if k TES: Uso Y ACTIV ce or isbo elopment obstract g icative o in the bo required, at the source raph of th security epresente in the iong from 150 s are tech erize a re che report classific- lei design c location y an indices, roles, roles,	aing atand atain copi dissemini- red." may obta . Other obtain c her quall of the Offi or sale to inown. e for addi ITY: En oratory sy. . Include living a b f the repo ody of th a continu- stract of in- the abstra- classific d sa (TS, gth of the D to 225 s hnically : Eport and internation, the n, may be cation of and weight	dard state les of this stion of the in coples qualified opies of (if fied user trolled. Q trolled.	ments of DDC
10. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES: Enter any lim- itations on further dissemination of the report, other than those					SIFIF)	

Security Classification

÷

1